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VEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2015 - - MORNI NG SESSI ON

JUDGE CLI FTON: W're back on record on Novenber 18, 2015.
It's a Wednesday. It's approximately 9:01 in the norning.
W're in Fresno, California. This is Day 40 of the mlKk
heari ng.

My name is Jill Cifton. I1'mthe United States
Adm ni strative Law Judge whose been assigned to take in the
evidence at this rule making hearing. W'IlIl be tal king nore
about the closing out of ny function and then thereafter, the
filing of briefs, later on in the proceeding.

| would Iike to take appearances of others who are
participating. Beginning first with enpl oyees of the United
States Departnment of Agriculture, please.

MR HLL: Good norning, I"'mBrian Hll, and |I'man
Attorney for the Ofice of the General Counsel, Marketing
Regul atory and Food Safety Prograns Division. Thank you.

M5. BECKER  Good norning, Lauren Becker, |'man Attorney
in the Ofice of the General Counsel for USDA

MR, FRANCIS: Good norning, WII Francis, USDA AVS Dairy
Program

M5. MAY: Laurel May with USDA AMS Dairy Program

MR VIERRA: Brad Vierra with the Federal MIk Market in
Dal | as, Texas, Order 126.

MR. SCHAEFER: Henry Schaefer, HE-NRY, SCHA-E-F-E-R

Agricul tural Econom st for the Upper Mdwest MIk Marketing
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Order Federal Order 30 on detail to USDA Dairy Prograns.

M5. ELLIOIT: Hello, ny nane is Panela Elliott,
E-L-L-1-OT-T, I'"'ma Marketing Specialist with the USDA AVS
Dairy Program

MR. CARMAN.  Good norning, Cifford Carman, CGA-R-MA-N,
Assistant to the Deputy Adm nistrator, Dairy Programs. 40 days
and 40 ni ghts.

M5. COALE: Good norning, Dana Coale, GO A L-E, Deputy
Admi ni strator, Dairy Programs, AMS U S. Departnent of
Agriculture.

MR, BESHORE: Good norning, Marvin Beshore, MA-RV-I-N,
B-E-SSHORE, Counsel for Proponents of Proposal Nunber 1
California Dairies, Inc, Dairy Farmers of Anerica, Inc., and
Land O Lakes, Inc.

MR. VLAHOS: Good norning, John, heading home, VIahos,
J-OHN, V-- asin Victor -- L-A-HOS, with the law firm of
Hanson Bridgett in San Francisco, HA-NS-ON, B-RI-DDGE-T-T.

MR, HOLLON:  Good norning, Elvin Hollon, E-L-V-1-N,
HOL-L-ON, Dairy Farners of America and Proposal Number 1.

MR. SCHAD: Dennis Schad, SGHAD. | work for Land
O Lakes.

MR. GARBANI: Pete Garbani, spelled GA-RB-A-NI, with
Land O Lakes.

MR, ERBA: Good norning, Eric Erba, E-RI-C E-RB-A

California Dairies, Inc., Senior Vice President and Chi ef
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Strategy O ficer.

MR, ENGLI SH: Good norning, your Honor, and Ladi es and
Gentlemen, for that Nunmber 40. M nane is Chip English,
EENGL-1-SH and I'"'man Attorney with the law firmof Davis,
Wight, Tremaine, with ny principal office in Washington D.C.,
and | have been here for these | ast 40 days on behal f of the
Dairy Institute of California and its nenbers, who are
Proponents of Proposal Number 2. Thank you. And thank
everyone for this proceeding.

MS. VULIN  Good norning, Ashley Wulin, A-S-HL-EY,

V -- as in vacation -- UL-1-N, also an Attorney wth Davis,
Wight, Trenmaine representing the Dairy Institute of
California, Proposal 2. And | just want to say | have really
enj oyed getting to work with everyone here and getting to know
you all, so thank you.

DR SCH EK: Good norning, WIlliam Schiek, S -- as in
Sayonara -- CHI1-E-K Economst with the Dairy Institute of
Cal'i fornia.

MR, DeJONG Janes Dedong, D-e, J-ONG Dairy Policy
Econom ¢ Analyst with Hi |l mar Cheese, and | have no nenorabl e
| ast words.

M5. HANCOCK: Nicole Hancock with Stoel Rives, representing
the California Producer Handl ers Associ ation and Ponderosa
Dairy.

MR, LAI: Good norning, Victor Lai with Producers Dairy

8055

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XXXX Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

Foods, that's V -- as in Vlahos, Wulin, or Vetne -- | - C-- as
in difton, Coale, and difford -- T -- as in Taylor -- OR --
as in Richnrond. M mddle initial is M-- as in Marvin, and
Megan -- and last name is L -- for Laurel and Lauren -- and A-|
-- as in | have no nore letters to ny name. And also | do wi sh
everyone a pleasant holiday season once these proceedi ngs end.
Thank you.

MR. VANDENHEUVEL: Make up for the all the tine we wasted,
Rob Vandenheuvel -- no spelling -- M1k Producers Counci l

MR MLTNER Ryan MItner, MI-L-T-NE-R Counsel for
Select MIk Producers, and honored to be the |ast person giving
introductions at this hearing. Thank you.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Is there anyone who has not yet conme to the
podi um who would like to identify hinmself at this time? No
one. Let us take prelimnary nmatters and announcenents.

M5. MAY: Laurel May with USDA. First of all, last night
sonebody left this card here. You probably got to your hote
and had to get another one, but if this is yours, come get it.

Qur final day, but of course anybody who would like to
is welcome to testify at this hearing. Anybody who would Iike
to ask questions of any of the wi tnesses, may do so by sinply
com ng up here and letting us know.

We're trying to broadcast -- we are broadcasting via
live audio feed, that's avail able at www. ans. usda. gov/ | i ve.

The court reporter is working diligently at getting the
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transcripts and exhibits back to us so that we can post them
online, and when they are ready, they will be available at the
AVS Dairy website.

And we were asked to provide you wth addresses for
subm tting proposed findings, briefs, and transcript
corrections, so we put together a little paper for you to, that
we will hand out. But | neglected to put our e-mail address on
there, so once we get themhanded out, | will read that out to
you ask you can just pencil it in yourselves.

CGet your pencils ready. Down at the bottom you can
wite in our e-mail address so that you can send your courtesy
copies to us at this e-mai|l address, and again the size limt
for files to send to us that way is 20 negabytes. It is
AVBDai ryComments -- all one word -- at anms.usda.gov. |'ll say
it again: AMSDai ryComment s@ns. usda. gov

And note to yourself that it's 20 negabyte limt. W
w |l also post this information on our website, so if you
m spl ace this very val uabl e docunent, you will be able to go to
our website and find the same infornmation.

Finally, yesterday we ended with M. Schad on the
stand, and | believe today that we are going to hear from
M. Hollon, M. Erba, and M. Lund. So | will -- last call for
this roomkey. Al right.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | amso delighted that you prepared this

handout. This is very helpful. | also wll add an e-mail
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address for the Hearing Clerk, and I'lIl tell you why. | don't
want you to use it for your official filing of your briefs,
because | believe you owe it to the Hearing Cerk to bring your
hard copi es or send your hard copies so that the Hearing Cerk
doesn't have produce them But the Hearing Clerk would | ove as
a courtesy, an e-mail with a PDF attachnent. And the reason is
that the Hearing Cerk places in the database, a PDF of your
filing. And if you will provide it as an e-mail attachment,
that would be very, very helpful as a courtesy. It would also
be a lovely courtesy, if you would, at the tine of your very
first filing, which would probably be proposed transcri pt
corrections, enter your appearance. G ve a one-page entry of
your appearance and indicate on your entry of appearance,

whet her you are willing to receive any copies of filings by
e-nail, and that would be a trenendous courtesy to the Hearing
Cerk as well.

Then, the other thing you could do besides providing by
e-mail a courtesy copy of your filing in PDF form and entering
your appearance, is you could show in what you file, to whom
you sent copies of your filing. For exanmple, if the only thing
you did was send it to AMS, you could showthat. |[If you also
sent it to the other attorneys who are proponents, if you al so
sent it there, that would be hel pful.

So if you need from one another your official

addresses, your e-mmil|l addresses, please obtain those from one
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anot her while you are still here.

So | want you to add to the witten docunment, the
e-mai|l address for the Hearing Cerk, which I'mnow going to
read to you. |It's not case sensitive, it doesn't matter
whet her it has any capital letters, it can be all smal
letters: Qaljhearingclerks@cio.usda. gov

QALJ Hearing Cerks, that's all one word, the QALJ just
stands for Ofice of Admnistrative Law Judges, and then
Hearing Clerks. So Qaljhearingclerks@ocio.usda. gov

"Il read it again, but I'lIl tell you what the OCI O
stands for, that's just Ofice of the Chief Information
O ficer, and sonme of our e-nmmil addresses have that instead of
the actual unit that we're part of. M unit, for exanple
happens to be Departnmental Managenment, so if you were e-nailing
to me at ny official USDA address, it would be, and | woul d
| ove to get an electronic version of your proposed transcript
corrections; it would be Jill.difton@M usda.gov and I'Il read
again the Hearing Clerk's e-mail address;

Qal j heari ngcl erks@oci 0. usda. gov.

M5. VULIN. Can you read yours one nore tine, please?

JUDGE CLIFTON: Jill.difton@M usda.gov. M. HII?

MR HILL: Brian HIIl. | just want to nmake this perfectly
clear for anyone listening. Obviously, everyone here is very
savvy and knows exactly where this is supposed to go and who it

I's supposed to go to, but for anyone listening, it is a
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necessity for your briefs to go to the Hearing Clerk. Courtesy
copies are fine to other parties, but the four printed copies
nmust go to the Hearing Cerk for your brief to be recognized.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. And it is required by
regul ation that four printed copies go. It doesn't matter, you
know, which one is the original, |I mean, they are all treated
the same, but for identical copies. The Hearing Clerk wll
stanp one as the original, and then the others normally, one
woul d go to the Laurel May because she's the only person who so
far has entered her appearance in that file. If other people
enter their appearance in that file, would be lovely if you say
you are willing to receive by e-mail just to | essen the burden
on the Hearing Cerk. But the Hearing Clerk will be receiving
the four printed copies.

The other thing that's very inportant that is on this
witten document. I1'mgoing toread it. Al filings should be
received by the filing clerk no |ater than 4:00 p.m Eastern
time on the date established by the Judge as the deadli ne.

This is true, that's the last hour for filing. And people have
been deni ed the opportunity to appeal by being late. They may
have submtted it on the sane day, it nay have been 4: 30 where
they were, Pacific time, but it was already 7:30 p.m Eastern
time. And if that beconmes an issue, the Judicial Oficer has
ruled that that's not tinely and will not be considered. So

you don't want to wait until the last mnute on these
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deadl i nes.

Pl ease al |l ow adequate tinme for briefs to reach the
Hearing Clerk's Ofice by mail or parcel delivery. Now, the
problemw th that is, it has been known to take three weeks for
that diversion for irradiation, so if you use ordinary mail
you just cannot rely upon neeting your deadline. So |I'm asking
you, please use a commercial carrier service such as Fed Ex or
a UPS or the |ike.

All right. So you need the phone nunber for the
Hearing Clerk for a couple of things. One is to confirmthey
received your submssion, one is if you are delivering it in
person, to have soneone fromthat office come to the security
area and escort you to and fromthe Hearing Cerk's office.
That phone nunber for the Hearing Clerk's office is
(202) 720-4443, and it is on this page that we have handed out
W thin the room here.

All right. So | would like to know, do we want to talk
again about this timeframe for all of the post-hearing
submi ssions now or do we want to take evidence now and then
tal k about it after? At the end? | think that's w se.

All right. And then | have one other thing. | would
like all of you who could, to wait after we have gone off
record and have finished, just for a short debriefing with
W1l Francis just to indicate requests for next time or

comrents on what went well or did not go to well. Just a help
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to the Department. | personally amso happy with the way so
many things went, but everything could always be inproved. And
W Il Francis has requested this and | think that's wonderful.
So if you can stay a little bit after, it won't take |ong.

M. HII?

MR HLL: Brian HII. One last thing. | think originally
when you gave the time you said 4:00 p.m, it's actually
4:30 p.m, just want to make sure that that's on the record,
and hopefully they get it before 4:00 p.m but it's actually
4:30 p. m

JUDGE CLIFTON: Yes, it' true. 4:30 p.m is the last --

MR H LL: Eastern.

JUDGE CLIFTON: 4:30 p.m Eastern is when the filing day
ends so your submi ssion would need to arrive before 4:30 p. m
or by 4:30 p.m Thank you, M. HII. Al right. Let us, are
there any other prelimnary nmatters prior to our proceeding to
the next evidence? | see none. M. Beshore?

MR, BESHORE: Marvin Beshore. W are asking M. Hollon to
return to the stand for one final appearance. And, your Honor,
| woul d ask that a docunent which has been distributed, three
pages, which is identified as Testinmony of Elvin Hollon, Eight
Statenent, Rebuttal, title Transportation Credit Testinony on
t he second page, that that be given the next exhibit nunber.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Elliott, I'mthinking this is 192. Do

you agree?
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MS. ELLIOIT: That's correct.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Exhibit 192.
(Thereafter, Exhibit 192, was
mar ked for identification.)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:
Q Thank you. And M. Hollon, are you prepared to proceed

w th your eighth statenent?

A | am

Q Exhibit 192, Transportation Credit and Testi nony.
A, Correct.

Q Take it away.

A

Transportation Credit Testinony
The Cooperatives amend our proposal with regard to

transportation credits to allowmlk fromfarnms |ocated inside
or outside of the marketing area to receive transportation
credits. At the same tinme, we support reducing the limt for
applying a paynent to a maxi numof 175 mles. As we have
further analyzed the mlk supply available, 175 nmiles is a
sufficient area to attract necessary supplies. The |anguage
supporting this change, is as follows:

Q W would ask that the words "is as" be inserted for
foll ows.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. It is done.
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MS. ELLIOIT: Ckay.
MR, HOLLON:  Section 1051.55, Transportation Credits.
(b) Transportation credits shall apply to the follow ng:

(1) Bulk mlk delivered directly fromdairy farnms to poo
pl ants described in (b)(2) in the follow ng Transportation
Zones:

(i) Transportation Zone 1 -- deliveries to plants
| ocated in the counties of Los Angeles, O ange,
Ri versi de, San Bernardino, San Diego, and Ventura,
originating fromdairy farns located in the counties
of Riverside, delete San Di ego, or San Bernardi no.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Now, you left out the word "all", probably
on purpose, I'mnot sure. Could you -- oh, I'msorry. |'m
| ooking at (ii), I'mlooking at 2 little (ii), I'msorry, |I'm
in the wong place. Thank you.
MR HOLLON
(ii) Transportation Zone 2 -- deliveries to plants
| ocated in the counties of Los Angeles, Riverside,
San Bernardi no, San Diego, and Ventura --
BY MR BESHORE:

Q M. Hollon, could you begin on that one again? | think
we mssed a word, "county".

A. (ii) Transportation Zone 2 -- deliveries to plants

| ocated in the counties of Los Angeles, Oange,

Ri versi de, San Bernardino, San D ego and Ventura,
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originating fromdairy farns located in all counties,
strike the words within the marketing area except
Ri verside, strike the words San Di ego and
San Ber nardi no.
(iii) Transportation Zone 3 -- deliveries to plants
| ocated in the counties of Al ameda, Contra Costa,
Marin, Napa, Santa Clara, San Francisco, Santa Cruz,
San Mateo, Sacranento, Sol ano and Sonoma counti es,
originating fromdairy farns located in all counties,
strike the words within the marketing area
(2) Pool plant(s) for which the nonth have utilization of
greater than 50 percent in Casses | and/or Il
JUDGE CLI FTON: Now, what you said neans the sane as what
is printed, but where you put the word "for" was different. So
do you want to re-read it exactly as printed?
MR HOLLON: | will re-read it.
(2) Pool plant(s) which for the nonth have utilization of
greater than 50 percent in Casses | and/or Il. The
utilization requirenent nay be met for the current nonth or
it may be met on the basis of utilization during the
preceding 12-nonth period, ending with the current nonth.
(c) Transportation credits shall be calculated at the follow ng
rates:
(1) Wth respect to each delivery described in paragraph

(B)(1) of this section, the Market Adm nistrator shall
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(i) Determ ne the shortest hard-surface highway m | eage
between the shipping farmand the receiving plant. The
m | eage determ ned by this calculation shall not be
greater than 175;

BY MR BESHORE:

Q And, M. Hollon, at that, on the |last clause there, |
think it just says "great"” on the exhibit that should be
"greater", correct?

A, That is correct.

Q W would ask that that correction be made, your Honor.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

MR, BESHORE: And for purposes of noting the change to the
publ i shed, the published proposal, we would ask that the
nunbers "225" be inserted with the strike through before for
"175".

MR, HOLLON:  That's correct, also.

MR, BESHORE: (kay.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So, Ms. Elliott, the way | have
it, see if you agree, is this very last portion of the quoted
| anguage reads, "by this calculation shall not be greater than
225" with a strike through it, followed by "175" as it is.

MR HOLLON:  Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  Ckay.

MR, BESHORE: Thank you, your Honor.

MR, HOLLON:  This concludes the Cooperatives' proposed
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transportation credit |anguage anendnents.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Do you have anything to add with respect to the
proposed anendnent s?

A, W did discuss the proposed anendnents anongst our
group. W |ooked at sone conparisons to the other two places
where there are transportation type progranms and noted that
they did not have a geographic limt, strictly a mleage limt.
And in the case of Order 30, the limt there is 400 mles. And
in the case of the Southeastern Orders, the handler applying
for the credits generally absorbs the first 85 miles of cost
and then the system pays for the balance. So we felt like to
align with those principles, that we would do the same. And we
al so reviewed the data that we had on nmileage limts, and
agai n, discussed within our group, and felt like 175 mles
woul d be a sufficient area to attract necessary mlk supplies,
so we al so reduced the 225 down to 175.

Q Very good. Wth that, M. Hollon, |I would nove for the
admi ssion of 192, and M. Hollon would be available for
cross-exam nation on this topic.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Does anyone wi sh to question M. Hollon
bef ore determ ni ng whet her you object? No one. |Is there any
objection to the adm ssion into evidence of 192 -- Exhibit 192?
There are none. Exhibit 192 is admtted into evidence. Wo

w |l begin wth questions on this topic?
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(Thereafter, Exhibit 192, was
received into evidence.)
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY DR SCHI EK
Q Good nmorning. WIIliam Schiek
Good norning, M. Hollon
Good norning, Dr. Schiek

Q Just a couple of questions. In Transportation Zone 1
and 2, maybe | missed this, you may have said it, | nmay have
been | ooki ng at sonmething el se, but why did you delete
San Diego fromthe counties?

A.  That was no change fromthe first time around. W had
all that discussion onit, and | have to admt, | had forgotten
sone of the points that | think M. English asked instead of
you, and you answered themto himon the side, instead of ne.

Q So I nust know the answer.

A, Yes. W're happy at that point.

Q kay. Thank you. And this is how you tell it's been a
| ong hearing.

Your note, discussion of 175 being sufficient and there
were sufficient supplies within that zone. |n your
di scussions, did you have some -- | guess |I'mwondering, were
you | ooking at current production or anticipation of future
production noting that Southern California mlk production has

been on the decline?
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A. | think we considered all of those options, as well as
t he CDFA survey data and our own experience. And early on in
the prior testinony, we discussed the Cooperatives or the
preponderance, |ike 75 percent of the transportation credit
dollars, and so we felt |ike |ooking at supplies and | ooking at
demands, that that would be an adequate number. And probably
the burden for filling it would also fall on us.

Q Gkay. Thank you very nuch

JUDGE CLI FTON: What other questions are there for
M. Hollon?

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VANDENHEUVEL:

Q Good nmorning, M. Hollon

A, Good norning, Rob

Q Rob Vandenheuvel, M1k Producers Counci l

Just one clarification. You nentioned sone of the

other transportation credit systens that exist, particularly in
the Southeast. |Is it true that that particular transportation
credit systemis funded through an assessnent on the d ass
pl ants and handl ers?

A, That is correct.

Q And so this program and | know this has been di scussed
earlier, but since this was brought up again through this
nodi fication, this is funded essentially through producer

dollars in the formof a credit against the plant or handlers’
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obligation to the pool ?

A. It is funded through producer dollars.

Q Sothat's a significant, a significant effort on behalf
of producers to play a role in facilitating these |onger hauls

in deficit markets, wouldn't you say?

A | would agree.
Q Al right. That's all | have. Thank you
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you. | don't know, M. Holl on,

don't have the whole section in front of ne, nor do | want to
go get it out of Exhibit 1. Let ne just ask you, since we have
changed the enphasis off strictly California, would it be,
would it be at all useful when we |ook at (b)(i) to add the
word "California" before the word "county" so that its delivery
to plants located in the "California counties of", it may not
be necessary, it may be totally understood.

MR HOLLON: | don't think it would be any di sadvant age.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. And if it is useful, | would just ask if it
woul d be useful intwo little (ii)'s as well.

MR. HOLLON: The answer woul d be the sane.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And three little (iii)'s as well.

MR HOLLON:  And the answer woul d be the sane there.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And then, you have nade it clear that this
is available to all counties, but people who haven't heard you
testify wouldn't really realize that that's -- that that

i ncludes those outside the marketing areas. Did you discuss
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any |anguage to make that perfectly clear?

MR HOLLON: | think it is perfectly clear in (b)(i), (ii),
(ii1), where the words "all" were there, and the people dealing
wth this, both froma regulatory standpoint and a day-to-day
busi ness standpoint, would i nmedi ately understand that.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Al right. Good. What other
questions are there for M. Hollon. M. English?

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Good nmorning, M. Hollon. Chip English

A Good norni ng.

Q Thisis afollowup fromM. Vandenheuvel. He was
referring to things that happened several weeks ago, so | guess
| need to as well.

He referred to this as producer noney. Wre you here
for the testimony of M. Schad when he tal ked about his class
price build up?

A |1 don't think I was here that day. | think I was doing
sone work on some |ater testinony that day.

Q Have you read his testinony? Are you aware of what he
testified about?

A, I'mgenerally aware. | have read a draft or two of it.

Q So would you agree that in his testinony when he
di scussed the build up of a Cass | differential, he referred

to, as an additional reason for the ass | differential, the
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paynent of these transportation credits?

A. | renenber that conversation.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE CLI FTON: What other questions are there for
M. Hollon on this topic? M. Francis?
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR FRANCI S

Q WII Francis, USDA

Just want to clarify the counties and just to make sure

we're clear on all this. And so in (b)(1) you list the zones,
but they also have to neet the within 175 under (2) or under
(c).

A, Well, you can, you get paynent up to 175 mles. So if
there's a delivery fromone of those zones that's 176 m | es,
you woul d get credit for 175, but not for 176.

Q kay. So maybe the way | should ask the question is,
have you expl ored what counties outside of California that
woul d potentially be eligible, dairy farmers |ocated i n what
counties outside of California could potentially be eligible to
receive credits? Have you | ooked at that?

A. No. | think any shipnent woul d have the opportunity to
get 175 mles or whatever they actually travelled.

Q Ckay.

A If it was 50 mles, they would only get 50 mles, if

that's what the actual transport was.
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Q kay. But the intent of all counties is referring to
all counties in the U S

A.  Sonebody chose to send a delivery fromthe Louisiana to
Los Angel es, they could get 175 mles of transportation
assi stance and they would eat the renaining 2,500.

Q kay. Just wanted to be clear.

A.  Fair enough.

Q Thank you.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: What ot her questions are there before |
invite redirect? M. Beshore, redirect, please?

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Just one question on redirect, and maybe we shoul d have
made this point earlier. |Is it the intention, while we haven't
gone into | anguage regarding paynments here, is it the intention
t hat producers outside of the narketing area who may receive
transportation credits, would share in the expense of that from
the pool of those transportation credits?

A, That would also be true.

Q | don't -- and so if there's sonme need to address ot her
| anguage in the proposal that would nake that clear, we're
going to do that on the brief?

A, That's correct.

Q kay. That's all.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Are there any further questions? None.
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Thank you. That conpletes M. Hollon's testinmony as to this
t opi c.

MR, BESHORE: M. Hollon will continue. W do not have a
prepared statenment, but he does have sone further testinony
whi ch, which we will provide through exam nati on.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Gkay. So, M. Hollon, were -- you were not here
yesterday, but M. Schad, in his testinmony -- naybe you read
this Monday while you, no, you weren't here then, either.

Ckay. M. Schad, in his rebuttal testinony, presented sone
information fromLand O Lakes wth respect to sales in the year
2014, at |less than Federal Order prices and sonme ot her
information with respect to Land O Lakes sales in 2014. And he
asserted in that statement that you would provide simlar
information with respect to Dairy Farnmers of America's
operation in the Federal Order systemduring 2014. You are
aware of that?

A | am aware.

Q And are you prepared to provide information with
respect to those subjects for, or on behalf of Dairy Farmers of
Arerica with respect to its operations?

A Yes, | am

Q Ckay. So let's begin, then, sort of proceed

geographi cal ly perhaps, or however you want to proceed. Let's
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tal k about sales at |ess than class prices.

Do you have informati on on what volume of sales in
Federal Order areas, DFA may have had during 2014? And let's
preface that for context, when you presented it before. Just
give us an overview of the areas, of the Federal O ders where
the DFA narkets some mlk and with which you are famliar with
their marketing of mlk.

A. Ckay. For the purpose of day-to-day business, DFA' s
di vided into seven operational areas, where one of the main
responsibilities of each of those areas, totally aside from
governance, but involved in marketing, is moving mlk fromfarm
to plant on a daily basis. | think this week the estimte was
that we woul d be transporting 2,666 |oads of mlk a day al
across the country, and fromCalifornia to the Atlantic.

Q Wen you say loads, that's a, you are tal king about
t anker | oads?

A. A 50,000 pound tanker load of mlk is the equival ent
unit of measure.

Q Ckay. So what Federal Order markets are then
enconpassed in that operation?

A.  That woul d enconpass all Federal Oder markets with the
exception of Oder 131, where we do have a producer |ocated in
that marketing area, but his mlk is marketed in the Southwest
Order, and we have producers in the Pacific Northwest O der,

but those are marketed through Dairigold. Al of the rest of
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the Orders fromthose two the East are directly marketed by
DFA.

Q Gkay. So the Oder 1 in the Northeast?

A.  The Northeast Order, the Appal achian Order, the
Sout heastern Order, the Florida Oder, the Upper M dwest and
Central Orders, the Mdeast Oder, and the Southwest Order.

Q kay. Very good. Now, in 2014 in those orders, what
informati on do you have with respect to the extent of sales of
mlk at |ess than Federal Order prices, pooled sales of mlk at
| ess than Federal Order prices?

A. In the Southeastern Orders that nunber would be, for
2014, 5.1 percent, and that would be the |argest of any. And
in that Oder, in that geography, the Florida Oder, the
Sout heast Order, and the Appal achian Order. And our, to ny
know edge there are only three plants that do any seasonal
bal ancing. So a small cheese plant in Uniontown, Al abama;, a
diversified plant in d asgow, Kentucky; and that plant also
owns an operation in Springfield, Kentucky. And if you were to
have the entirety of those plants' capacity, which is not
possi bl e, we would have 40 [oads of mlk a day. And at the
time when balancing is at its greatest, there are at | east
seven different entities knocking on that door |ooking for that
space.

Wth regard to the Mdeast Oder --

Q Let's stop, if you would. |If I could interrupt you in
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the Sout heast Orders just for a mnute. So those are high
Cass | utilization Oders, correct?

A.  Absolutely.

Q Soin, perhaps it's counterintuitive to discussions
that we have had at this hearing, but the need for narket
clearing transactions out of the area and at, sonetines, at
prices less than class prices is greatest in high dass | areas
as opposed to manufacturing areas; is that correct?

A, That's generally true. Just again, as an exanple, we
have al ready started discussing those needs for this Christmas
hol i day season, and noting the calendar that Christmas is on a
Friday, quite likely many of the custonmers will be down Friday,
Saturday, and Sunday. So that will be three days of mlk that
Wi |l need to be bal anced somewhere, much of which will |eave
t he geography of the Southeast Order and be bal anced in Texas,
sonme in New Mexico, sone in Indiana, some in Chio. And in the
Upper M dwest, there will be mlk into Mnnesota and W sconsin
that contributes to that vol une.

And | would also nmention that M. WIlians, from
CGeorgia, when he testified, he made note of the same scenario,
the same situation, that bal ancing capacity was very limted in
t he Sout heast.

Q Ckay. So when you say plants are down, just for
clarity, you mean customers that commercial, that are

commercial outlets that are buyers for mlk in the Southeast,
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processors of mlk in the Southeast are not operating during
t hose days?

A. That's right. The Gass | and dass Il denand
custoners, which are the overwhel m ng predom nance of purchase
power in that nmarket would close their plants for, some three,
all three of those days, sone two of those days.

Q Ckay. But the cows don't take those days off?

A. W haven't figured that out vyet.

Q kay. So let's go on then, to other Order areas and
your, the incidents of |ow class sales in 2014.

A.  In the Southeast Order, which would enconpass Texas and
New Mexico, 7/10th of one percent of our sales there would be,
have been in any way bel ow cl ass, and that woul d enconpass not
only our own business, but there's a common marketing agency
there accounts for just under 80 percent of the narketplace
sal es.

Q And when you say the marketplace, you are tal ki ng about
t he Sout hwest Federal Order?

A, Correct.

Q Ckay. So the .7 percent is then the percentage of 80
percent approxi mate, al nost 80 percent of the Southwest Order's
total volunme during 20147

A, That would be right.

Q Now, the bal ance of sales in Southwest Order, is it

fair to say then, that the bal ance of the sales are at, and the
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overwhel m ng anmount of them are substantially above Feder al
Order m ni num prices?

A.  That would al so be correct.

Q Including the sales to cheese plants in that Oder?

A, That would be correct, also.

Q Ckay. And there are several, two, you know, major
| arge cheese plants in New Mexico that are supplied with mlk
fromthat Order, correct?

A.  That is correct.

Q kay. By the way, are the -- are there plans that have
recently been announced for substantial investnment in cheese
manuf acturing capacity in the Sout hwest Federal Order area?

A. That is correct. The Sout hwest cheese plant, which is
jointly owed by three of the, the three nmenbers of the agency
and d anbi a, announced a trenendous expansion over the next two
and a half to three years of the plants in dovis, wll
increase the mlk throughput, as well as sone of the other,
sone of the whey processing.

Q Ckay. And I think | saw sone, you know, newsletters,
$130, $140 million investnent. Does that sound about right?

A.  That sounds reasonable. | don't remenber the nunbers,
but it's a trenendous investnent.

Q Ckay. And that's an investnment that's being made by
the owners of that plant in order to continue to, in order to

expand the production of cheese at prices, at Federal Order or
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above, correct?

A, That is correct.

Q Ckay. So let's go on, then, to the next Order or
regi onal area.

A, The next the next three are conbined. And that woul d
be the DFA Central area, which includes geography fromthe
Texas/ Gkl ahoma border north to the Canadi an border, and from
t he Kansas/ Col orado border on the west, east to the
I ndiana/lllinois border, and that woul d enconpass pretty nuch
all of Federal Orders 32 and 30. Also, DFA's M deast
operational area which markets prinmarily in the Oder 33, and
DFA's Northeast area which markets primarily in Order 1. And
data fromthose three stats indicate for 2014, a range of 1.4
to 1.9 percent, any sales were made to an undercl ass price.

Q Ckay. Now, in those areas, do you have information
W th respect to the other 98 plus percent of sales for
Cass Il purposes, for cheese maki ng purposes, and the range
of prices that were applicable to those sal es?

A. | do. In the Northeast area, our marketing staffs
there indicated for cal endar 2014, prices for cheese or
Gass Il sales, ranged anywhere from$1.20 to $1.25 per
hundr edwei ght over Class Il for our range of customers
primarily in the Oder 1 area. In the Oder 32 and 30 area,
gi ve sone geographi ¢ breakdown further there, but in the

M nnesota and W sconsin sections of that narket, our sales
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there averaged between $1.40 per hundredwei ght and $1.85 per
hundredwei ght, to a wi de range, a broad range of dass |1
cust oners.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Are you saying nore than Cass I117?

MR HOLLON  Yes, nma'am

JUDGE CLIFTON:  kay.

MR HOLLON:  And in the lowa and Kansas City and Southern

Kansas and Okl ahona markets, to Cass IlIl custoners in those
areas, anywhere from$1.82 to $2.08 over Cass |Il for cal endar
year 2014. | think that covers the geography.

And there would be a wide, a |arge nunber of
manufacturing plants in which we sell to, nost are done on a
contractual, they are all done on a contractual basis of sone
sort that specify volumes, prices, and duration.

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Gkay. To your know edge, are the prices, DFA's prices
of sales to cheese plants in those areas, representative of the
prevailing prices in of the narketplace?

A.  They are representative of the prevailing prices in the
mar ket pl ace. Cbviously, |ooking back at order statistics there
is a high dass Ill utilization, so there's a trenendous anount
of, first of all, a |arge nunber of plants and a |arge
conpetitive environment, so that would be reflective of what
the conpetitive footprint is in that area.

Q Gkay. In all of those plants we can, in all of those
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areas then, we can | ook at the cheese in terms of the
conpetitive value of mlk in the Federal Order system for use
to produce cheese for the entire year 2014, we can | ook at the
volumes in those Orders, and with your price information, and
have a good idea of the cost of mlk for cheese making for
Federal Order, for plants purchasing in the Federal O der
systemin 20147

A.  Absolutely.

Q Ckay. Did you have a weight, a weighted average for
those areas in aggregate?

A. Not in aggregate, but in the Upper M dwest areas, a
wei ghted average, when | referred to M nnesota, Wsconsin,
lowa, St. Luis, Oklahoma, that weighted average of all prem uns
included, including the negative premuns | referred to
earlier, was $1.69 per hundredweight. And in the Oder 1 area,
that range was vary narrow from$1.20 to $1.25, so the weighted
average woul d be very tightly bound inside that nunber.

Q Ckay. Now, you nentioned, M. Hollon, that DFA and DFA
system vyou're responsible for marketing in excess of 26,000
tanker loads of mlk fromfarmto plant everyday. Correct?

A. Correct.

Q Ckay.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Could you give me that nunber again, if you
have it handy? | didn't get it all witten down.

MR HOLLON: 2,666 was the estimate for this week.
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JUDGE CLIFTON: And that's loads of m |k per day?
MR HOLLON:  Correct.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q So a week in Novenber, just, how does that relate to
production on a year-round basis? It is towards the | ow point?

A It would be towards the low point. |If you used a
seasonal swi ng of 20 percent, you would have 120 percent tines
that for March and April, My, June.

Q Is 20 percent approxinate seasonal swing in aggregate
you m ght experience?

A.  That woul d probably be a reasonable -- it's obviously
nmuch higher in the Southeast. You m ght even approach 30 or 35
percent there. \Wen you get into the Southwest area would be
smal ler. The Northeast and M deast and Upper M dwest woul d be
i n between those nunbers.

Q Gkay. So | want you to now just -- just tell us how
that mlk is directed, howit's sold in terns of where the
first, where the first mlk goes, where the second m |k goes,
and where that final market clearing mlk goes, and | want, |
want you to think about the context of the discussion that we
have had in this hearing about the, whether there is a need for
the Cass Ill price to be a market clearing price.

A In our systemwhere those volunes are a good market on
a daily basis, again, much contractual, nuch on the agreenents

w th, |ong-standing agreenents with custoners across all
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cl asses, and so nost everyday Class | milk nmoves according to
t he demand orders of those customers. There is no narket
clearing that takes place in the dass | space. W have sales
to Cass Il custoners that fit that same definition; yogurt
plants, ice creamplants to sone extent, cultured product
pl ants, that are also on a denmand basis and have their, place
their orders. So a nuch nore, |'d say bal anci ng arrangenent,
we' |l have ice creamcustoners that will take weeks off at a
time, and obviously early in the spring heads into sunmmer, want
| arge vol umes of mlKk.

Qur Cass Il customers are described by demand sal es.
Those take place in all the Orders we operate in. Those are
nunbers of | oads and volunmes of mlk per day, negotiated
prices. At tines there is seasonal balancing that's priced
into those sales, but that's part of the demand terns. | think
Ms. Taylor mentioned, in her understanding of Leprino's
rel ationships wth DFA, that there is sone seasonal bal ancing
that goes into those prices where their plants runs five days,
si x days, or seven days, but those are all pre-agreed demand
and at prices over mnimm

Wth regard to Class |V sales, we have a very snmall
anount of Cass IV fat denand sales. W do have sone. And we
have a very small amount of Cass IV, nonfat dry mlk or mlk
powders demand sales. But we operate a range of a dozen plants

scattered around the country. Those plants are in Adrian
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M chigan; we'll do them al phabetically.

Q Let nme get the exhibit.

A Ckay.

Q Wich -- you have a map?

A. | have a map.

Q That shows those locations. And I would like to ask
that this docunent be marked as the next exhibit, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Very fine. It will be 193.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 193, was
mar ked for identification.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: We're distributing the map. It's been
marked as Exhibit 193. Please raise your hand if you still
need a copy. |t appears that everyone has one.

M. Beshore, you nmay proceed.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Gkay. Now, | interrupted you, M. Hollon, as you were
begi nning to describe the |ocations of certain Dairy Farmers of
Arerica plants. So do you have Exhibit 193 now?

A |1 do.

Q Ckay. And could you just continue with your, wth your
testinmony and referencing Exhibit 193 as appropriate?

A.  Geographically, looking in the northeast, there are
pl ants in Reading and M ddl ebury Center, Pennsylvania; in
Li nwood, New York, those plants do a variety of mlk powders

and skim products. | would also say in New Engl and we have an
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arrangenment with the Cooperative nmenber of DFA's St. August
Co-op, and they have a drying and condensed mlk facility in
Vernont that fits this definition.

Q That's not -- that's not, it doesn't showin 193?

A. That's correct, it is not on this map, but it is part
of the network. Cass City, Mchigan, is a condensing
operation; Adrian, Mchigan, is a condensing and drying
operation; Goshen, Indiana, is a condensing and drying
operation; Wnthrop, Mnnesota, is a condensed m |k
manufacturing facility. 1In Portales, New Mexico there is a
very large drying facility. Fort Mrgan, Colorado, also a very
|arge drying facility. Beaver, Utah, is a condensed m |k and
smal |, a condensed mlk facility, there's no drying there. 1In
Fallon, Nevada, is a mlk drying facility. And in Hughson
California, a mlk drying, condensing and a small amount of
butter manufacturers there.

And so these facilities are invested in by the
Cooperatives. There is sone amount of demand busi ness there,
but we sinply can't devote a tremendous anount of capacity
because it's needed for market clearing transactions when those
t ake pl ace.

| woul d perhaps point out that the plant in Portales,
New Mexico, | think it's at full capacity. |1t's approxinately
150 | oads per day. Today, | think the schedule indicates 20

| oads of mlk wll be there. Probably in about six weeks,
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there will be 150 | oads scheduled to go through the plant, with
as many as 150 nore sitting on the lot waiting to be processed.
And all of those, when you get to that point, all of that
product pretty well ends up in nonfat dry mlk powders, for
which there is not necessarily a coonmtted or demand sale for.
So there is where the market bal ancing capacity takes pl ace.
And the market bal ancing, to consider cheese manufacturing as
mar ket bal ancing sinply doesn't, the data doesn't fit that
definition. And that's not to say that there is zero, because
again, at the peak balancing times, there will be sone mlKk

bal anced in cheese manufacturing, but a very, very snall
anount .

Q kay. Sois it fair to say, in conclusion, that cheese
manufacturing in the dairy narketplace today in the Federal
M1k Marketing Orders in the United States, is a demand-driven
business in terms of its production?

A.  That woul d be our experience and know edge of the
mar ket pl ace. That it is a denmand-driven arrangenment. W have
very few sales to cheese plants where they are buil ding
inventory for an Order that doesn't exist.

Q Sone of that, | suppose, could relate to the fact that
there is no longer a Commodity Credit Corporation sale for
cheese, or market for cheese, as at one time there was, so that
if cheese plants wanted to produce inventory for that market

t hey coul d.
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A, That would be one factor.

Q Gkay. So do you have any ot her conments about the, you
know, the overall operations of marketing 2660 or nore tanker
| oads of mlk fromfarmto plant everyday, and which uses fit
into the demand versus the narket bal ancing el ements of that?

A. | do not.

Q kay. One final, | would like to just ask for your
commrents or thoughts on one final topic. Wth respect to the
proposed pooling arrangenents for the California Federal O der
that have been put on the table or suggested in the Proposal 2.
Now, those have been nodel ed, testinony has indicated under,
nodel ed under the Order 30 regulations. You are aware of that?

A Yes.

Q And you have, you market mlk in Order 30 and have sone
experience wth those with those provisions, correct?

A, That is correct.

Q Gkay. So do you have any thoughts about how those
woul d operate in a California marketplace?

A Well, in review ng some of the proposal |anguage, if
you | ook at Section 7.E, it does allow for a unit of handlers.
| can't say that every single Oder allows for that, but |
think they do. And many Orders, we operate wth other

cooperatives as the unit of handlers for pooling purposes and

to nore efficiently serve the market. |If we were to have that
provision available in California, we -- a California Order, as
8088

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XXXX Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

we have indicated, the three cooperatives would account for
about 75 percent of the mlKk.

Under a pooling, depooling, repooling arrangenent as
outlined by the | anguage in Proposal 2, at approxi mately
anytime we could take 20 percent of our unit, our supply, our
supply plant unit, if you will, take it off the market in one
nonth and put it back on in the next month with absolutely no
[imtation under that. So that our 75 percent of the narket,
and taking 20 percent of our 75 percent off, would be 15
percent of the pool or in the range of 500 mllion pounds of
mlk a month. And with the 125 and 130 percent depooli ng,
repooling limts, arrangenent, there would sinply be no
limtation to the desire to do that, which would create a, at
the very least, an interesting pricing arrangement where one
month C ass |V handl er nay have a price advantage in paying
producers, the next nmonth the Class Il handler, flipping back
the following nonth. And in order to maximze that, you may
| ook at doing it two or three nonths at a time, if you think
you are that good at projecting prices.

When you conpare that to the situation in Order 30, two
things sort of junp out. One is certainly the presence of
quota and the inpact on the blend price in the California
Order, but you also have a significant difference in the
concentration of handlers. A simlar Oder unit systemin

Order 30 is conmposed of, | think, certainly nore than 50
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entities. And the ability for those 50 entities to do
sonmething is sonmewhat constrained especially by the sheer
nunber of them In the proposed California Order, there would
be a lot less or a lot fewer nunber of handlers, and the
Cooper atives thensel ves woul d represent a very large slice of
t hose handl ers, so the Proposal Nunmber 2 would, in our view,
result in some fairly unruly pooling, repooling maneuvers,

whi ch we discussed in earlier testinony, and so we think that
woul d not contribute to orderly marketing.

Q So the market structure in Oder in California, is much
nore concentrated on the buy side as well as the on the sel
side than it is in Order 307?

A.  Absolutely.

Q Ckay. Do you have anything else you want to add at
this point? Last chance

A. | think | would nake one ot her conment about just the
general price |level of manufactured goods and the indication
that prices would, if there was a California Order, that prices
for manufactured goods would deteriorate greatly because of,
you know, perhaps the perceived large increase in mlk supply,
whi ch we di scussed we don't think would be the case. But |
woul d note if we | ook backwards in the industry over the |ast
ten years, there have been at |east three instances where there
have been trenmendously charge cheese plants who, you know,

G eenfield, one would be in Covis, New Mxico, Southwest
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Cheese. Just a few years later in Dalhart, the Hilmar group
built an extrenely large plant, and the nost recent |arge plant
is the Leprino plant in Geeley, Colorado. And based on, you
know, our market information, if you were to take the Upper
M dwest and Northeast plant expansions and aggregate them you
woul d aggregate theminto a plant that was at |east as big
collectively as any one of these. And yet, U S. cheese prices
haven't sunk to world levels, the nmarket has absorbed it. It
didn't do it instantly, but it recalibrated.
| just think it is -- it's not credible to think that,

you know, a California Order resulting in an increased mlKk
supply, which is not necessarily our view, wuld destroy cheese
prices.

Q Ckay. Thank you. No further questions for M. Hollon

JUDGE CLIFTON: Wio will be the first to ask additional
questions of M. Hollon? M. English, thank you.

MR, BESHORE: Your Honor, if | mght?

JUDGE CLIFTON: Yes, M. Beshore.

MR. BESHORE: | neglected to nove for the adm ssion of
Exhibit 193. At this tinme, | would like to do that.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Does anyone wi sh to question M. Hollon
about Exhibit 193 before determ ning whether you object? No
one. |Is there any objection to the adm ssion into evidence of
Exhibit 193? There is none. Exhibit 193 is admtted into

evi dence.
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(Thereafter, Exhibit 193, was
received into evidence.)
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Chip English.

Good norning, again, M. Hollon.

A.  Good norning, M. English.

Q So first, you tal ked about DFA having 2,666 tanker
| oads of m |k a day, correct?

A, Correct.

Q | was looking online while you were testifying, and it
| ooks i ke for 2014 there was total m |k production in the
United States of 206, 046, 000, 000 pounds. Would you that sound
right to you?

A. Say it again?

Q 206, 046, 000, 000 pounds of m |k production, does that
sound right?

A Yes.

Q And using the 50,000 pound tanker, that came out to
about 11,300 tankers per day?

A.  Sounds right.

Q Gkay. Wiich would nmean that DFA has the market share
of approximately 23 and a half or 23.6 percent. Does that
sound about right?

A.  That sounds about right.
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Q So that |eaves about 8,500 tanker |oads a day that you
don't have information about, correct?

A. Correct. No, | would say that's incorrect because we
do operate in the marketplace, and we do have know edge of
other activities. | won't say we have know edge of all,
what ever your number was, but to say zero would be incorrect.

Q Al right. But you don't have necessarily direct
know edge of what's happening in the pricing of those 8,500
tanker |oads, correct?

A, Not direct know edge, but again, you know, narkets are
conpetitive, and so what you are able to charge or negotiate is
somewhat in relationship to what others do.

Q Ckay. So one of those areas where you m ght get narket
information is Dairy Market News, correct?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. And | note, you weren't here yesterday, so |I'm
going to ask you sonme of the sane questions | asked M. Schad.
You provided data, some information with respect to 2014 and
not 2015, correct?

A, Correct.

Q And it's annual data, not nmonthly or even weekly data,
correct?

A, Correct.

Q So would you agree with ne, |ooking at the May 29,

2015, Dairy Market News, that there certainly are tinmes when
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mlk is reported as selling as surplus mlk and selling bel ow
class prices, correct?

A. | would agree.

Q So for instance, if that report fromMy 29 of this
year says a few | oads of M dwest surplus mlk sold at $10 bel ow
class this week, nore |oads are selling near $7 below, and mlk
nore widely available as to timng location now sells at $6
under, you wouldn't have information to di sagree with that
statenment from Dairy Market News, would you?

A | wouldn't have any information that would directly
col laborate that. |'mnot aware that we sold any m |k at those
price ranges that | know of, but | understand the Dairy Market
News system and how it worKks.

Q Now, actually, that does raise a digression question
When you tal ked about this, these issues, those were DFA sales
of DFA m |k that you were tal king about ?

A It was -- there's -- there are sone nmarkets where we do
market mlk for other people, but that's part of the network.
So to say that it is a hundred percent DFA mlk, | don't know
that | can say that.

Q Wll, what about sales to DFA plants of non-DFA or
non- DFA sort of affiliated sales in the mlk? Do you -- do you
have i nformation about sales to DFA plants by entities for
whi ch DFA does not have, it's not even DFA m |k or sales that

DFA is responsible for?
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A I'msorry, | got lost in your question. Do it again

Q What about purchases by DFA plants of mlk that is not
DFA mlk or mlk that DFA regularly markets for others?

AL I'mgoing to try to parse your question the way | heard
it. First, you said purchases by DFA

Q Purchases, you have all these plants you tal ked about
in your exhibit, correct?

A Yes.

Q Do you receive mlk at those plants at times that is
m |k other than DFA m |k or other than mlk that is narketed
regul arly by DFA?

A, Very rarely.

Q Gkay. So going back to Dairy Market News, and | think
an answer to a question from M. Beshore, that that sane
page -- that sane page, Page 3 of the that Dairy Market News,
says, "Sone of the production wll go to current demand and
some will be held in inventory for future sales.” So sone,
when peopl e can buy m |k bel ow class, that neans that they
actually do lay product aside for future sales, correct?

A Yes, that can happen.

Q And then the next sentence is, "Mst cheese nakers are
happy to increase schedules to the max to acconmmodat e
di scounted mlk." Are you famliar with that?

A |1 don't think I would characterize it "to the max" and

wth that direction, but at holiday periods those are known in
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advance that they are going to happen, so if cheese nakers have
capacity, they will negotiate for vol unes.

Q Does Dairy Farmers of Anerica have a Board directive to
not sell mlk under class, under long-termcontract?

A |1 don't -- | don't knowif there's a Board directive or
not. That's obviously not the practice, that's not the goal,
and you obviously wouldn't be around very long if you did that,
but | can't tell you if there is or there is not a Board
directive.

Q But are you aware that DFA does have a spot agreenent
to buy mlk at $5.00 and $10. 00 under regul ar basis?

A.  To buy spot m|Kk?

Q To buy spot milk at $5.00 to $10.00 under?

A. | amnot aware that we have agreenents to buy spot mlKk
at $5.00 or $10.00 under class price on a regular basis.

Q Does DFA, in Wst Texas and New Mexico, shoul dn't
say, doesn't DFA in West Texas and New Mexico pay bel ow m ni num

class prices to the dairy farners?

A | would say at tines, yes.
Q Ckay.
A. | think we discussed marketing in West Texas and New

Mexico in earlier testinony, correct?
Q | believe we did, and I"'msure |'ve forgotten what we
di scussed.

A. At |east one of the points that we discussed was the
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capacity in that market is not adequate to clear all the tine,
so we do nove m |k out of West Texas and New Mexi co to bal ance,
and a portion of that balancing cost is reflected in the
qguestion you just asked.

Q How nmuch milk has Dairy Farnmers of Anerica sold to
H | mar below class in the |last three years?

A. | don't have a number

Q Wuld you agree that you have, DFA has sold mlk to
H |l mar at prices that are under class prices?

A, On a spot basis, | would agree.

Q G ven your position about pooling or depooling at this
proceedi ng, are you going to, does DFA anticipate going to the
ot her Federal Orders and ask the depooling provisions be
removed?

A. |1 do not anticipate that.

Q If I may confer just for a nmonent. One of the
bl essings of this hearing, and |'Il be tal king about that in
answer to M. Francis' questions, is the wonderful fact that we
have this on the Internet. That can also be a curse.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | would like five mnutes to get something
to drink. So let us all stretch for about five mnutes, and
t hen expect to go back on record in about 10:27.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: We're back on record at 10:27. Now it is
10:28. M. English?
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MR. ENGLI SH  Your Honor, | was asked off the record, that
was the report for the week of May 25 to 29 of this year, it
was Page 3, it was referring to the Upper -- not the Upper --
the Mdwest markets, just for clarity.

Your Honor, | amprepared to yield the floor. | may
get sone questions fromny team and if they come, if they do
happen, they happen while he's still on the stand, then | would
ask them And if they don't happen at all or if they happen in
an untinmely way, then |I'm done.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you, M. English. \Wo next has
questions for M. Hollon?

MR, HOLLON: As they say on the Exchange, going once, going
twice --

JUDGE CLIFTON:  You are not a comodity.

MR, HOLLON: | think thanks.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Redirect, M. Beshore?

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Two real quick things. The days in May that were
referenced in the, that tine period in My that was, of this
year, that was referenced in the Dairy Market News reports,
does that have any significance in terns of m |k marketing?

A, No, that would be right on top of the Menorial Day
weekend, which is when Menorial Day weekend, Thanksgiving week,

Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, the day after, New Year's Eve,
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New Year's Day, the day after, those are typically the nost
difficult balancing periods. And for exanple, when | referred
to the fact that our own plants during that time wuld be full,
then our own plants would be full. And it was just a
tremendous anmount of milk during this Menorial Day season, and
so that would be, again, one of the nost difficult tines to
have. And you woul d expect, | suspect, if we went to Menoria
Day weekend in the prior year, Dairy Market News, there would
be discussion of extra mlk noving around the Upper M dwest.

Q Ckay. And just one final question, then. Your
testinony about the price in the various narkets, of course,
directly represents DFA and DFA nmarketing agency transactions,
such as the -- the agency in the Southwest, | don't knowif we
got the name of that in the record, but just to be clear,
that's involved in marketing 80 percent of the mlk in that
Order, what's that called?

A. Geat Southwest Agency, GSA is its acronym and what
it's known by.

Q Ckay. So your information, your direct information is
for DFAitself and its affiliates in terns of marketing
agenci es and conbinations. But we also have information from
Land O Lakes, from M. Schad yesterday. You are aware of that?

A He did put in simlar information, correct.

Q Andit's DFA's, it's necessary in DFA s business, and

it's your job and all those working for DFA's dairy farners, to

8099

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XXXX Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

know t he mar ket pl ace, and know the prices and conditions of the
mar ket pl ace; is that correct?

A. That's part of being a business in the marketplace, and
we're no different. And yes, we have people in every
mar ket pl ace that do that kind of day-to-day intelligence
information, buy, sell, call on customers, make sal es, get
turned down for sales.

Q And is it your testinony that the informati on you have
presented for this record in terns of DFA sales, and the
information that Dennis Schad has presented in ternms of LOL
sal es, plus your know edge of the nmarketplace, that those are
representative of the Federal O der marketplace throughout the
country for |ast year?

A, That would be accurate. | would agree.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English?
RECRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Chip English.

You recogni ze, of course, that | just pulled out an
exanple of the Dairy Market News? Isn't it true that for a
good part of this year, Cooperatives, and others, in the Upper
M dwest and the Northeast were so stressed with mlk, that mlk
was being literally dunped for a good part of the year, not

just related to the holiday, correct?
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A. Correct. There has been situations this year in
bal ancing that has required mlk to be dunped in Upper M dwest,
M deast, Northeast.

Q So, for instance, noving away fromthe holiday and now
['m1looking at the report precisely two weeks later than the
one we were tal king about for June 8 and June 12, if Dairy
Mar ket News says, "The world view fromcheese plants this week
is simlar to |ast week," which would be the week after
Menorial Day, correct?

A Uh-huh, yeah. [|'massum ng you got the right week.

Q Yeah. So -- "Surplus mlk is available in many
| ocations. Reports of surplus mlk at $5.00 bel ow cl ass are
heard in Wsconsin, lowa and South Dakota. In Chio, sone
surplus mlk is being shipped around $4.00 bel ow cl ass. "

Wul d that, based upon your nenory and, you know,
M. Beshore's questions of you, or your know edge of the
mar ket pl ace, woul d that be consistent with your recollection of
t he mar ket pl ace?

A That could have happened in the marketplace. | would
add to that, that while there's no quantities in the Dairy
Mar ket News' report of fluid mlk, that those would represent a
smal | percentage of the market.

Q A smll percentage of the market is, you know, margina
price for taking care of clearing the market, correct, sir?

A Say it again?
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Q That's what's clearing the narket, that |ast |oads of
mlk, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Thank you. | have nothing further

JUDGE CLIFTON: Are there other questions for M. Hollon on
this topic? M. Hollon, | think you are finished, and | thank
you so nuch for all of the work that you have put in throughout
this proceedi ng.

MR, HOLLON: Thank you.

MR. BESHORE: Your Honor, our final rebuttal witness is
Dr. Erba, and he will be presented by M. VI ahos.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  An exhibit is being distributed, and
Ms. Elliott, | believe we'll be marking it as Exhibit 194. Do
you agree?

MR. VLAHOS: Your Honor, nay | make a suggestion on that?
This is actually a conpletion of a docunent that was previously
identified. During the testinony of Ms. Taylor the, by
M. Beshore, it was nmarked for identification Exhibit Nunber
62 -- 162, excuse me -- but the actual arithmetic was |left open
to be conpleted by another witness. Dr. Erba is going to be
that ot her w tness.

During that testinony, there was inserted in the first
colum from M. Taylor's testinmony and her exhibits, the price
di fference for hundredwei ght between the Proposal Number 2

using their WPC net hod of incorporating whey value in the
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formul as, versus the existing Federal prices under MKk
Marketing Orders, but the actual nultiplication of that nunber
that in the first colum by the nunber in the second col um,
couldn't be done fromthe stand. So it was agreed that it
woul d be done | ater by another witness, and Dr. Erba has done
that. So | woul d suggest that rather than marking this 190,
what ever that was, that it be marked 162A.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. That sounds good. Thank you.
I'mlooking at the 162 that | have left over, | didn't fill in
anything on nmy 162 while Ms. Taylor was testifying, so | don't
know about that part. M. English?

MR, ENGLISH. Chip English. | don't object to doing it
that way. | note that the docunent is different in one way, in
that the colum that was on 162 after the Roman numeral C asses
was Price Difference for Hundredweight, and nowit's Price
D fference for Hundredwei ght Using WPC Options, because
Ms. Taylor was asked, and did provide, two different nunbers
for dass | and dass IIl based upon the two different --
again, | don't have an objection to being 162A, but | wanted to
make sure the record was clear that the two exhibit nunbers are
different in that respect as well.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Do you renenber precisely the two different
numbers that Ms. Taylor testified to, M. English?

MR ENG.ISH: Well, we wote themdown, and | don't know
whet her - -
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JUDGE CLIFTON: No, | don't nmean that. |'msorry. So one
was the dry whey price and the other was the WPC was a
concentration of 35 or sonething like that?

MR ENGLI SH:  Yes, 34.

JUDGE CLIFTON: 34?

MR. ENGLI SH: Yes, and that was for Class | and dass I11.
R ght, your Honor? | just wanted to nmake sure that we had
t hat .

JUDCGE CLI FTON: What did you just add just now? And that

was for Class | and Cass II117?
MR ENGISH Cdass | and dass Il only had those
di fferences, because Cass Il and Cass IV, the differences

don't factor into those cal cul ations.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

MR, ENGISH And again, I'mjust trying to clarify the
record, I'mnot trying to get in M. Vlahos' way and say it is
162A.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Rght. W'Ill just have to | ook back at
Ms. Taylor's testinony.

MR. VLAHOS: And | appreciate that clarification.

Actual ly, the added | anguage that M. English was referring to
makes it clear which version we're tal king about, so it's
really a clarification.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Yes, thank you. So, Ms. Elliott, you and I

wll mark this docunment as Exhibit 162A.
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MS. ELLIOIT: Ckay.
MR. VLAHOS: Thank you, your Honor.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VLAHCS:

Q Good norning, Dr. Erba.

A. Good norni ng.

Q And | understand you have sone testinony that you woul d
like to offer in response to sone of the issues that have been
raised in this hearing, and sone further concluding testinony
to offer.

But first, let's take up, tie up the loose end with
Exhi bit nunber 162A.

A. Before we proceed any further.

Your Honor, don't you have to recognize | have been
sworn in?

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. | appreciate that. Dr. Erba,
you remain sworn, but | would Iike you to again state and spel
your nane.

DR. ERBA: O course. FEric Erba, E-RI-C, E-R-B-A

JUDGE CLI FTON:  You know, this group can run this w thout
me fromnowon. | loveit.

BY MR VLAHOS

Q Dr. Erba, we had sone discussion here about this

Exhibit 162A, and just for, make sure it is clear on the

record, could you tell us what this represents?
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A The title of this is, Difference Between Federal O der
Prices and Dairy Institute of California s Proposal 2 Prices,
2014 Annual Total. And it's subtitled The New California
D scount. And as you have nentioned, this has been entered, at
| east in part, in previous Exhibit 162.

Q Al right. Could you explain what the nunmbers in the
first colum under the heading Price Difference Per
Hundr edwei ght Usi ng WPC Option are?

A The nunbers that appear there are the ones that were
drawn from as you said, Sue Taylor's testimony, plus the
exhibits that she had in that data. | don't renmenber which
one, | think it was 161, but |'mnot positive about that.

Q Wat about the nunbers in the second col um headed
Pounds, where do those nunbers come fron?

A, That was actually a part of Exhibit 162 at the day it
was entered. Those pounds cone -- those are annual totals
derived from CDFA data, one of the exhibits that was entered by
CDFA.

Q Now, the nunbers in the first colum have parens around
them which neans that under the proposal, Proposal Nunber 2,
using the WPC option, the differential in each Cl ass was that
t he Proposal Nunber 2 was |ess than the Federal M1k Market
Order prices, with the nunbers indicated in parentheses,
correct?

A. That's correct.
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Q And then, what about the nunbers in the final colum,
Difference?

A Well, those were not filled in, and I was selected from
a very esteemed group to be the provider of that infornation,
and woul d you like me to go through those ones by one?

Q Yes, please do.

A. Sure. So for Class | it's just a sinple calculation.
The price difference that appears in that Colum 2, the
negative $0.7781, multiplied by the 5.2 billion pounds of mlk
in dass |, results in a difference of, a | ower difference of
$40.79 mllion.

Q Stop right there. Just to make it clear, so that neans
for dass I, the Proposal Nunmber 2, with, using the WPC option,
woul d have resulted in a difference of less $40.79 mllion than
the Federal Order prices, correct?

A, That's correct.

Q Gkay. Now continue.

A.  The sane type of explanation for the row | abel ed d ass
Il, the negative $0.52, $0.52 a hundredwei ght, nmultiplied by
the 3.5 billion pounds that appears in the next columm, results
inanet difference, a |ower difference, $18.08 mlli on.

Keep goi ng?
Q Keep going, yes.
A, The next row down |abeled Class |11, a difference of

$2. 03 per hundredwei ght on 18.8 billion pounds of mlk, a |ower
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nunber, a lower difference of $381.56 nillion, and a final row

with the Roman Nunerals Nunmber |V, a negative $0.60 cents per

hundredwei ght, multiplied by the 13.5 billion pounds of mlk

marketed as Class |1V, a negative difference of $81.3 mllion.
The final rowin that table |abeled Total, on

41 billion pounds of mlk, that's the total m |k produced, 2014

in California, a difference of negative $521.73 mllion.

Q Can you conpare that nunber, $521.73 million, with the
general average nonthly value of dollars in the pool, total
dollars in the pool ?

A, Sure. The pool, total pool revenues in the [ast few
nont hs, Septenber and August, are right around $500 billion, so
this negative difference for the entire year represents one
entire nmonths' worth of pool value from Septenber or August or
July, they are all about the sane.

Q Thank you. Now, | understand you have some comments on
t he subj ect of exenpt quota.

A |1 do.

Q Is that correct?

A | do. And this is the, a statenent regarding the
California Producer Handl ers Association, their proposal,
Proposal 2.

W\ recogni ze that exenpt quota is rooted in the sane
California statutes as regular quota and was granted by the

state or was purchased from ot her producers, just as regular
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quota was. \Wen we understand the concerns expressed by

Cass | handlers regarding the uniformty of mninmmd ass
prices, however, we see that exenpt quota has some uni que
features in that it is confined to just four vertically
integrated farms, and is subject to other limtations such as
consangui nity provisions and | ack of |egislative authority,

| ack of |egislative authorization to expand exenption. W have
anal yzed, to the fullest extent possible, the inpact on the
producer blend price to allow themthe continuation of exenpt
quota, taking into account geographic |ocations, the anobunts of
exenpt quota involved, the conversion of exenpt quota to
regul ar quota, the eligibility for transportation credits, and
the application of regional quota adjusters, we estinate the
net inmpact on the pool of recognizing exenpt quota is |ess than
one-hal f cent per hundredwei ght, per nonth.

In light of these various considerations, the three
Cooperatives, California Dairies, Inc., Dairy Farners of
Amrerica, Inc., and Land O Lakes, Inc., do not oppose the
California Producer Handl er Proposal, also called Proposa
Nunmber 3. W express no opinion on the sufficiency or adequacy
of the |anguage proposed for the inplenentation of Proposal 3.

Q Does that conplete your testinony on that subject,
Dr. Erba?
A, Yes.

Q Now, also, could you go on to explain the issue of the
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termtransportation credits in the California system and their
not, non-use of that concept in Proposal Number 17?

A.  Not non-use? |s that what you said?

Q Wll, I knowit's a double negative. Renove one of the
negati ves.
A I'mjust clarifying for the record.

Q Oh, that's good.

A. There is something called transportation credits that
exist today in California under the State Order. And it
represents plant-to-plant shipnments of narket mlk, skim
condensed skim but not cream and has specific designations
for receiving plants being certain counties, so in
Southern California mght be: Los Angeles, San D ego,

San Bernardi no, Riverside County, Orange County.
In Northern California, that mght include: Santa dara,
San Francisco and Al aneda.

What | want to explain is that our proposal, Proposa
Nunmber 1, does not include the same features, that we do not
have something that represents a plant-to-plant shipnent of
mlk in terms of a subsidy fromthe pool. And there's a couple
reasons for this. W decided not to include, because it's
really not used very nuch anynmore. |f you | ook at some of the
monthly exhibits fromthe Departnment of Food and Agriculture,
California Department of Food and Agriculture, you will see

that the nunber runs between 10 and $30,000 a nonth, comnpared
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to say over 3 million for transportation allowance, so one-one
hundredth of the same inpact in ternms of pool. And

adm ni stratively, we have just figured it would be nore
difficult to nonitor and admnister than it is really worth to
the California system So we have excluded what is known today
as transportation credits fromour Proposal Number 1, it
doesn't exist.

Q | know this has been done in the record before, but |I'm
sure it can still be confusing because the term Transportation
Credits is used in Proposal Number 1. But that term as used
in Proposal Number 1, is different than the term Transportation
Credits as used in the California system So could you explain
that difference?

A, Sure. \What we have proposed in termng Transportation
Credits of Proposal Number 1 is an equival ent of transportation
al | onances as they exist today.

Q As they exist in the current California systen?

A Yes, exist inthe California State O der.

Q Ckay. And Dr. Erba, do you have sone comments of the,
on your view of the state of the dairy industry in California
as it stands now in 20157

A. | do. And we have tal ked about a |ot of different
pi eces of data, mounds of data really, and | don't want this to
get lost in all the data that we have tal ked about over the

| ast 40 days. And that is, what is our status today?
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If we look at the -- what's happening to the three
co-ops that submtted Proposal 1, and | ook at the year-to-date
m | k production, and taking all of our information into
account, we are 5.2 percent |ower year-to-date through Cctober
than we were last year for the same tine period.

Unfortunately, what we have all seen is that this is
accelerating, so we have actually gotten worse if you | ook at
the nore recent nmonths. And I'Il just give you the exanple.
If we ook at just Cctober of 2015 and Cctober of 2014, that
average is not 5.2, it is now alnost 7.69 percent. And again,
that represents data fromthe three co-ops conbi ned.

Q Do you foresee any continuation of the trend?

A. Unfortunately, yes. That acceleration that we have
seen in 2015 is not a mstake. There's been a |ot of changes
in the structure of the industry. W have seen this all year
long. There are a |lot of choices out there. W have heard
about that for, again, the last 40 days fromdifferent
W t nesses, including producers, about the different conpetition
risks for resources, and I amthinking of [and and water
specifically. And the producers that have chosen to stay with
the dairy industry are looking to diversify, get into other
parts of agriculture perhaps, not just strictly dairy. And
there are sone that have said, 1"'mdone with the dairy
industry, I'mgoing to sell ny land, or perhaps I'Il turn ny

| and into orchards, or trees, or other permanent crops, and |
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don't -- those dairies aren't com ng back. So the fact that
this trend is accelerating is nore than a little bit alarmng
to us.

Q Do you think that adoption of Proposal Nunmber 2 woul d
have any inmpact on that trend?

A |1 don't think it would change anything in terns of the
trend itself, it may even nake it worse. Things are going to
happen, and there may be, the different proposals may have
different inpacts. But for certain, Proposal 1 is actually one
that would actually save some of this from happeni ng,

Proposal 2 woul d not.

Q Do you have some comments about the testinony of
Dr. Schiek concerning quota?

A. | do. Unfortunately, | wasn't here the day he
delivered his testinmony, and 1'd just like to make a few
comrent s about some of the things that are included.

If you | ook at Page 2 of Exhibit 145, Dr. Schiek
nment i oned CMAB' s conmi ssioning the study of California Dairy
Institute, in which MKinsey and Conpany was ultimtely hired
to undertake that task. And that led to a publication of two
separate reports called Options for a Consuner-Driven Dairy
Gowh Strategy, Parts 1 and 2.

The report from MKi nsey and Conpany suggests t hat
quota coul d be bought out using sone kind of a debt instrument,

and t hey suggest maybe a bond woul d be that debt instrument.

8113

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XXXX Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

And the cost of that would be paid back by extracting revenue
fromthe pool. And it sounds incredibly sinple, I nmean, this
Is back in 2007, incredibly sinple, but hasn't been done yet,
so why is that?

And | just want to enphasize that the MKinsey and
Conpany suggested an idea and it was really just an idea with
no road map, no blueprint to howto carry out the idea. And
what the California dairy industry found, at |east the producer
side found out, when they repeatedly pressed MKi nsey and
Conpany for some of those details on howto get started, really
captured in a quote | found in a book that | read, and | want
to just share that with you. The book is called The Smart est
Quys in the Room The Amazing Rise and Scandal ous Fal | of
Enron, by Bethany MlLean and Peter Elkind. And I'lIl just read
the quote as it is, this is directly fromthat book: "MKinsey
and Company's ideas often sound incredibly conpelling, even
pure, in a way that nmakes it inpossible to believe they could
ever be corrupted, but MKinsey consultants tend to be
desi gners of ditches, not diggers of ditches. Wen it cones to
executing their lofty theories, well, consultants |ean toward
| eavi ng those nessy valleys to the conpani es thenselves." And
so basically what we have in California dairy industry was an
idea with no idea howto even get started on this.

If you | ook at Page 3 of, again, of Exhibit 145 from

Dr. Schiek, he nentioned the Quota Review Commttee as
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appoi nted by California Secretary Kawanura in 2007. And the
Quota Review Conm ttee produced a table very simlar to what
Dr. Schiek produced yesterday in his Exhibit 191, nore
condensed, but basically the sane kind of thing. And what it
is, is just an anortization table of sorts. And it represents
a nechani cal exercise, really not a plan for how to buy out
quota. The difficulties that they encountered to try to
execute a buy-out programare not captured in Dr. Schiek's
Exhibit 191, and certainly not captured in the reports received
by MKi nsey and Conpany.

After the Quota Review Commttee concluded its work in
2007, California Dairies, Inc., the conpany I work for, decided
to ook for that next step, how do you actually get started on
this road map, this mssing road map.

| met with a gentlenman by the nanme of David Johnson,
who is the Managing Director of Wells Fargo Institutiona
Securities, and discussed, over a period of nonths, what a plan
m ght ook |like. And we have never publically rel eased our
work, but | do want to share with you some of the ideas that
cane out of our discussions over those couple of nonths'
peri od.

We Dbelieved, the two of us as we tal ked, we woul d need
new | egi sl ation or anmendnents to the Gonsal ves M|k Pooling
Act, as well as changes to existing regulation. The new

provi sions or amendnments to the California Food and
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Agricultural Code woul d be necessary to create a structura
framework and flow of funds of the dairy pooling programto
facilitate a successful financing. Conceptually, the
amendnents woul d include the establishnent of a new

quasi - governmental entity with the authority to collect and
pl edge and assign quota paynents to a trustee conduit or bond
hol der. | should say that was point nunber 1

2. Authorize a new quasi-governnental entity to nake a
first priority claimahead of producers, against the MIKk
Producer Security Trust Fund for non-paynment of diverted quota
payment s.

3. Authorization for issuance of bonds or other
financi ng mechani sns.

4. Make changes in the reporting billing and paynent
system of the producers, processors, and equalization fund.

5. Make changes to the duties of the M|k Pooling
Branch.

6. Develop legislation that disallows material changes
to legislation of the MIk Pooling Programand new | egi sl ation
whi | e any bonds are out st andi ng,

7. Develop legislation to end quota paynments once all
bonds are repaid.

8. Develop legislation to irrevocably elimnate
producers' rights to quota paynents once diverted to new

quasi - governmental entity.
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So the cross-exam nation of Dr. Schiek by various
parties yesterday concerning Exhibit 191, denonstrated that the
anortization table is not a well-thought out and conceived pl an
for a quota buy-out, does not recognize via quota, and is
admi nistratively and perhaps |l egally, infeasible.

Q Does that conplete your comments on the quota issue?
A It does.
Q Do you have some final comments about the producer
position of the matters at issue here in these proceedi ngs?
A 1'd just like to add in addition to that rebuttal
just provided, that we have heard in the |ast nine weeks, and
seen, and w tnessed, strong producer support for continuation
of the quota programin an unchanged fashion

| think just a concluding comrent that | would like to
make. W have seen producers united in support of a California
Federal Order, and we were fortunate, really fortunate, to have
a very strong turnout of producers who can tell their own
stories. They came in representing different co-ops, they are
representing different sizes of farns, different |ocations
within the state, they all had different histories, different
experiences. | have been able to hear themall. | have had an
opportunity to engage with themand ask them questions and
further their cause about their experiences. And what | would
say is, despite all these differences that we have seen with

t he producers who have cone through here and taken their tine

8117

BARKLEY
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XXXX Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

to testify, the one common el ement was that each one voiced
strong support for the California Federal Order as found in
Proposal Number 1, and that's a proposal that was submtted
jointly by the three Cooperatives.

Q Do you have anything further you would |like to add,

Dr. Erba?

A, Actually, | do, it has nothing to do with this. | want
to express ny sincere thanks to the fol ks at USDA, our court
reporter, our sound guy over there who is hiding in the corner,
and lastly, Judge Clifton, for your tireless commitnent to this
cause, and your dedication, and you absol utely have ny
admration for what you have done over the last 40 days. |It's
been very inpressive. And that does conclude nmy comments.

Q Thank you, Dr. Erba. At this time, your Honor, | would
like to nmove into evidence Exhibit 162A.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Does anyone have questions for Dr. Erba
bef ore you determ ne whether you object? No one. Are there
any objections to the admi ssion into evidence of Exhibit 162A?
There are none. Exhibit 162A is admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 162A, was
received into evidence.)

MR. VLAHOS: Thank you, your Honor. Now, Dr. Erba is
avail able for further exam nation.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Thank you. W will go first? Thank you,
M. English.
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Good norning, Dr. Erba.

A.  Good norni ng.

Q No thanks for us?

A | didn't thank ny side, either

Q Gkay. Good norning. So | really only have one set of
qguesti ons.

A, That's perfect.

Q And that's about the exenpt quota issue. |If
under st ood the co-ops non-objection, is it's that you appear to
be recognizing, in your view, the interconnection between quota
and exenpt quota based upon what happened when the CGonsal ves
Pooling Act was adopted; is that correct?

A, That is correct.

Q Now, isn't it also the case when the Gonsalves M|k
Pool ing Act was adopted, that CDFA's response as to
out-of-state mlk was to provide this treatment, this
accounting treatnment, that left it as a wash at the end pl ant
bl end, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Gkay. And isn't it the case that CDFA has, even before
Congress, testified that that is, or was, the treatnent of
out-of -state m k.

A Now, that | couldn't tell you.
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Q Ckay. So why not continue the treatnent of

out-of-state mlk at the end plant blend based upon that sane

principle?
A. That is a position we are still considering, and |'m
fairly certain we'll be addressing that in our briefs.

Q The original brief, not the reply brief, right?
A | don't know.
Q Al right. Thank you. That's all | have.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Who next has questions for Dr. Erba?
M. VM ahos, | see no questions. Do you have any redirect?
MR. VLAHOS: Can | say it from here?
JUDGE CLI FTON:  You may.
MR VLAHOS: No.
JUDCGE CLI FTON: Thank you. M. WM ahos said no.
Dr. Erba, is there anything you would like to add? Actually, I
don't want you to say another thing, I'mstill basking in what
you gave all of us in the way of support, and | appreciate that
very much.
DR. ERBA: Then | think I'Il leave it at that.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you, you may step down.
DR ERBA: Thank you.
MR. BESHORE: Marvin Beshore. Your Honor, with the
conclusion of Dr. Erba's testinony, that concludes the rebutta
case for Proponents of Proposal 1. W rest.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you, M. Beshore. M. English, wll
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there be any further testinony, either in opposition to
Proposal 1 or in support of Proposal 2?

MR. ENGLI SH:  Your Honor, maybe | can answer that question
after Ms. Hancock puts on her wtness. | think the answer is
no, but there's sone debate going on. And | would ask also |
think that maybe we could have a norning break. |, at |east,
need a little break.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | think -- oh, ny goodness, it is 11:00.
Yes. It's 11:05. Please be back and ready to go, it will be
wth M. Lund testifying, so that would be at 11:20. Be back
and ready to go at 11:20.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: W're back on record at 11:21. W have got
a docunent and | would like to give it the next exhibit nunber.
Ms. Elliott, | believe it will be Exhibit 194. Do you agree?

MS. ELLIOIT: Yes.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 194, was
mar ked for identification.)

JUDGE CLI FTON: Exhibit 194. And that is Testinony of
Dennis Lund. M. Lund, you remain sworn.

MR LUND: Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | would like you to again state and spell
your nane.

MR. LUND: Dennis Lund, L-UND

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. Ms. Hancock, you may identify
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yoursel f and then you nade proceed.
M5. HANCOCK: Nicol e Hancock, representing the California
Producer Handl ers Association for purposes of this testinony.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. HANCOCK

Q M. Lund, is this your prepared witten statenent that
you have as Exhibit 1947

A Yes.

Q Wuld you mind reading that into the record?

A M nane is Dennis Lund. | am Foster Dairy's Director
of Cost Accounting. | appear before you today on behal f of all
t he exenpt quota holders and the California Producer Handl ers
Association for the limted purpose of addressing a question
rai sed by Judge Jill difton regarding val uati on of exenpt
quota. It remains the position of CPHA that we would like to
preserve the exenpt quota treatnment, along wth the
preservation of any quota systemin a California Federal M|k
Marketing Order. W do not want to sell our exenmpt quota or
have it cashed out. W offer this valuation only in the event
that it is the only method the Secretary deens to val ue the
guota systemin California.

If quota is to be dimnished through a purchase of some
sort, CPHA understands that Lon Hatam ya has presented
testinmony that establishes the regular quota value. The

testinmony in these proceedings is uncontroverted that exenpt
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quota has a val ue above and beyond that of regular quota. | am
here to offer one way to recogni ze and val ue exenpt quot a.

For purposes of valuing the exenpt quota, we adopt the
val uati on nmet hod proposed by Ted DeG oot discussed |ast week.
Exenpt quota has a val ue above and beyond regul ar quota, that
can be nmeasured as the difference in price between dass 1 and
quota. Class 1 prices are set differently in
Southern California than they are in Northern California, so
the valuation of exenpt quota is slightly different between
t hese two regions.

Attachnment 1 to ny testinmony shows the nonthly
hundr edwei ght val ues for Class 1 prices in Northern and
Southern California. | use the Cass 1 price for each region
and subtract the quota price for each corresponding nmonth. The
cal cul ated difference between the two, determ nes the
addi tional value of exempt quota over regular quota for each
nonth from COctober 2010 t hrough Septenber 2015. | averaged the
exenpt quota value for those last five years. | took that
exenpt quota value and divided it by the quota prem um of $1.70
per hundredwei ght to determine the ratio of exenpt quota val ue
above and beyond that of regular quota val ue.

Using this nethodology, | calculated the ratio of the
val ues of exenpt quota to regular quota for Northern California
to be 1:1.96. The ratio of the values of the quota, exenpt

quota to regular quota for Southern Californiais 1:2.12. In
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Northern California, every pound of exenpt quota is the
equi val ent in value of 1.96 pounds of regular quota. In
Southern California, every pound of exenpt quota is the
equi val ent to 2.12 pounds of regular quota.

Usi ng $525 per pound of quota valuation, that would
nean that each exenpt quota pound in Northern Californiais
equal to $1,029 per pound, and each exenpt quota pound in
Southern California is equal to $1,113 per pound. This next --

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Lund, repeat that nunber again, because
your voice wasn't totally clear

MR. LUND: The | ast nunber?

JUDGE CLI FTON: Yes, please.

MR LUND: $1,113 per pound.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

MR. LUND: Then next sentence has a two-word correction,
['I'l read it the way it should read.

According to the California Departnent of Food and
Agriculture, there is a total of 57,914.1 pounds of exenpt
solids nonfat quota.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Let us, right now, fix that.
O exempt, tell nme again?

MR, LUND: O exenpt "SNF quota".

JUDGE CLIFTON: So we're inserting two words "of exenpt”,
just after "pounds".

MR LUND: As of August 2015( CDFA Exhibit 61, Table AC).
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JUDCGE CLI FTON:  And would you read it one nore tine,
M. Lund, although you need not reference the CDFA exhibit.
MR LUND: Ckay.

According to the California Departnent of food and
Agriculture, there is a total of 57,914.1 pounds of exenpt SNF
quota as of August 2015. O the total SNF exenpt quota,

40, 244. 51 pounds of SNF exenmpt quota are produced in
Northern California, which equates to a val ue of
$41, 411,600.79. There are 17,669.59 pounds of SNF exenpt quota
in Southern California, which equates to a val ue of
$19, 666, 253.67. If exenpt quota were to be purchased, these
amount s reflect what should be paid to the farnmers who own the
exenpt quot a.
BY MS. HANCOCK

Q And is that the chart that's reflected on the bottom of
Page 3 of Exhibit 194, is just reflective of the nunbers you
just read into the record?

A It is a summary of what | just read, yes.

Q Ckay. And then Page 4, your one sentence?

A (Ch, yeah.

Thank you for allowng nme to testify before you today.

Q M. Lund, in addition to the quota price, or | guess,
with the respect to the quota price, are you famliar with how
RQA's work in the California state systen?

A, Somewhat, yes.
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Q kay. What is your understanding of how that would
i npact quota and your calculations in this exhibit?

A, Well, the Regional Quota Adjuster, it ranges anywhere
from5 to 25 cents per hundredwei ght depending on the county
that the producer is in, and it is a reduction in the $1.70
hundr edwei ght advantage quota has. So that is, so if you
included that differential, depending on what county we were
in, that differential of Class 1 to quota would actually be
hi gher.

Q So the nunbers would actually increase if you were able
to break it down into the various regional quota adjuster
factors?

A, Yes, it would increase the value calculated that | just
read.

Q kay. Have you in your role with Foster Farmns, |ooked
at the return on quota?

A Yes. |If we bought quota now, we would get the $1.70
hundr edwei ght advant age over non-quota mlk, and would not be
exenpt, and we have di scussed buying that fromtime to tinmne.

Q And have you cal cul ated what the return on investnment
is for quota?

A. Recently we took a look at it, and it's about a 12
percent return, and depending on your assunptions of the future
cost of nmoney, it is about an 8 and a half to 12-year payback.

Q Gkay. Your Honor, at this time | would nove the
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admi ssion of Exhibit 194.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Let's have the witness identify this
attachment. These two pages.
BY MS. HANCOCK

Q Oh, thank you.

M. Lund, can you talk about the | ast two pages on
Exhi bit 194?

A It's a sunmary of Class 1 and quota hundredwei ght
prices and the difference between the two, going back, |
believe, to 2010, five years. And it's the basis for
calculating ny testinony on the value of exenpt quota over
quot a.

Q And on the last two pages you have several colums or
several nunber highlighted. Can you tell us what those nunbers
are?

A.  Those would be the yearly average of the differentials
bet ween quota and non-quota, exenpt quota and quot a.

Q And then on Page 1 of 2 on that last, on the last two
pages, on the far right hand four colums, you have
hi ghlighting there as well, what are those four nunbers that
are highlighted?

A.  The average of the last five years for Northern
California, between quota and O ass 1 hundredwei ght is $1.63,
and the difference for the last five years of Cass 1 and quota

for Southern Californiais $1.90. And then we took the ratio
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of those factors divided by the $1. 70 a hundredwei ght for
qguota, and got the ratio of quota to exenpt quota.

Q And that's reflected for Northern California as 1.96?

A Yes.

Q And then Southern California is 2.127?

A Yes. And then we multiply that tines the narket val ue,
current market value of quota to get the relative market val ue
of the exenpt quota.

Q So for Northern California that's the $1,029 per pound,
that's what you're valuing for the exenpt quota in Northern
Cali fornia?

A Yes.

Q And then $1, 113 per pound of exenpt quota for Southern
Cali fornia?

A Yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Does anyone wish to ask M. Lund questions
bef ore determ ni ng whet her you object? No one. |Is there any
objection to the adm ssion into evidence of Exhibit 194? There
is none. Exhibit 194 is admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 194, was
received into evidence.)

M5. HANCOCK: That's all | have at this tinme, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Wio will ask the first cross-exam nation
questions of M. Lund?

M . Vandenheuvel ?
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VANDENHEUVEL:

Q Good norning. Rob Vandenheuvel, MIk Producers
Counci I .

We heard -- we heard testinmony earlier in this hearing
that sone of the producer-handl er exenption was issued as part,
a mpjority of the producer-handl er exenption was issued at the
begi nning of the Gonsalves MIk Pooling Act in the 1960's, but
that there was sonme additional exenption purchased by the -- it
was unidentified by who, but by at |east one or nore of the
current producer-handlers in the state. Are you aware of that?

A Yes, | am | don't know the ratio between what was
I ssued and what was purchased later, but | know that's true.

Q And it was sonetime in the 1990's that those
opportunities existed I think is the nost recent tinme that
those were avail abl e?

A, 1994.

Q Ckay. 1994. Wen that opportunity was nmade avail abl e,
was there a calculation of, or analysis run simlar to this as
to a conversion factor of traditional quota into
producer-handl er quota, or was it a pound-for-pound conversion?

A, In determning whether it was a good idea to purchase
this quota knowing it will be exenpt, there was an anal ysis of
what the, basically return on investment would be.

Q An internal analysis by the potential purchaser?
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A Yes.

Q But interms of the actual accounting by the state of
converting quota into exenpt quota, was it done on a
pound- f or - pound basis or was sone adjustnent factor included?

A As far as | know, we purchased quota as if we were
purchasing quota as if anybody el se was purchasing quota. In
our case, it was exenpt. Qher than that, the State didn't
of fer any ot her explanation or calculations to us.

Q Soit's true that a single pound of quota purchased in
that opportunity of traditional quota, would have been, was
converted into a single pound of exenpt quota in that
cal cul ati on?

A Yes.

Q ay. Thank you very nuch.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Who next has questions for M. Lund?
M. Francis?
CRCOSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR FRANCI S
Q Thank you. WII Francis, USDA
The $525 per pound of quota valuation that you used is
a fixed nunber, but it's ny understanding that that val ue has
varied historically?
A Yes.
Q Did you consider factoring any other historical val ues

into that calculation? O what does that $525 represent?
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A, That represents, for the nost part, current market
val ue of quota. W looked at the last 12 nonths of quota
purchases, and | believe 525 is about the average.

Q So that's the average for the nonth nost recent 12
month's of data?

A, Fromwhat | renenber, yes.

Q kay. That's all | have.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Are there other questions for M. Lund
before | invite redirect? | see none. |s there any redirect?

M5. HANCOCK:  No, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. The answer is no. Thank you so
much, M. Lund. | appreciate your returning and hel ping us
wth this difficult issue.

MR. LUND: Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English, do you have any further
evi dence?

MR ENGLI SH:  No.

JUDGE CLI FTON: M. Hancock, do you have any further
evi dence?

M5. HANCOCK:  No, your Honor.

JUDGE CLI FTON: The answer was no, your Honor.

Thi s concludes the evidence. M. Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: | have two mnor problenms, two tiny |oose

ends | wanted to note. | had previously stated when Dairy

Institute made a notion relating to file a brief related to the

8131

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XXXX Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

request to have a negative inference be inposed, that we
present a brief in opposition to that notion during the
heari ng.

We have a brief. I'mnot going to file it or read it
now, but we will present those |egal argunments in response in
our opening brief. | didn't want to | eave that hanging in the
record.

The other -- the other thing that just occurred to ne
is, Exhibit 103 and 104 were identified and di scussed, but | do
not believe were offered at the time, or admtted. Now, they
have been -- they have been referenced again and further
testinmony presented with respect to them but | would like to
nove their admssion into the record, if they have not been
admtted. They were graphs that were used in cross-exanination
of M. DeJong.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Elliott, do you show whether 103 and/ or
104 were adm tted?

MS. ELLIOIT: No, your Honor, they needed to be entered, or
admtted rather.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English?

MR, ENGLISH. Chip English. 1'mgoing to help shortcut
this alittle bit. They were not authenticated at the tineg,
but | assume that M. Beshore has a w tness who could be put on
the stand who woul d provide authentication, and if he nmakes

representation to that effect, then rather than putting that
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W t ness back on the stand and going through that fornmality, I
woul d - -

MR BESHORE: It was in M. Schad's rebuttal testinony, |
bel i eve.

MR. ENGLISH: |'mnot going to object, your Honor. | would
just say, nove along little doggy.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. M. Schad, will you be offended if we don't
recall you?

MR. SCHAD: The answer is no.

JUDGE CLIFTON: The answer is no. |s there any objection
to the admission into evidence of Exhibit 103? There is none.
Exhibit 103 is admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 103, was
received into evidence.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is there any objection to the adm ssion
into evidence of Exhibit 104? There is none. Exhibit 104 is
admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 104, was
received into evidence.)

JUDGE CLI FTON: This concludes our hearing. W wll go
forward now, while we're still on the record, and get our time
tabl es for subm ssion of transcript corrections and briefs. It
i's not necessary that everyone in the roomrenmain for that.

You are welcone to, you are not required to. | know that

submtting briefs is going to be a teameffort, it's not just
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the lawers, it's the lawers in conbination with those who

support their work, so you are all welconme to stay, but that's
our next order of business. Then, when we have conpl eted that,
while off record, we'll neet with M. Francis for a postnortem

MR. ENGLI SH: Chip English and Marvin Beshore. And you
know, |et me say again, that, you know what is extraordinary
about this proceeding is the conradery, the friendships, and we
m ght fight Iike heck as we zeal ously represent our clients,
but we also try to work together on procedural matters. |
think we really have done that throughout this hearing in any
nunber of ways.

So we considered things overnight, and M. Beshore and
| spoke this norning. And with one caveat at the end of this,
we have sort a, we have a proposal that | think if | state
correctly, is the joint position here.

MR, BESHORE: |If you state it correctly, it is joint.

MR, ENGLISH. Okay. So we tried to pull this sort of from
the other direction, and listening to M. Beshore's concerns
about the briefing. So we are thinking about the origina
briefs being due on Thursday, March 31st, and the reply briefs
bei ng due on Monday, May 16th. W thought about 45 days, that
woul d put you on a Sunday. So Monday, My 16t h.

And then working backwards, but in a way delinking,
using a different phrase than depooling, delinking the

transcript fromthe briefs. Wth the understanding that we
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expect the transcripts to be ready no later than January 1st,
that M. Beshore and I, for our teanms, would submt our
proposed corrections to the transcript on January 15th, which
believe is a Friday. And then that would give whatever tine
you decide, two weeks or three weeks for others to get
corrections in. And with the anticipation that the transcript
woul d be certified before March 1st, but with March 1st being
sort of a date that we were thinking connecting all of these
dots.

Now, if the transcript is not available on January 1st,
we woul d then ask for whatever days there are after January 1st
to be added to the days that we have to finish. But with the
understanding that that doesn't autonatically mean anyt hing,
because hopefully we built enough tinme for the transcript to be
certified by March 1st anyway.

If we get to March 1st and the transcript hasn't been
certified, then rather than automatically noving the dates, we
woul d give us an opportunity to have a conversation and maybe
then the dates nove based upon that. But, candidly, on
January 15th, if we have what we hope to be the mgjority, the
vast mpjority of the corrections, and given the fact the
corrections are not supposed to change the substance, that
really isn't going to change what people wite in their brief,
it changes where they put their citations, which hopefully 30

days is nore than enough to put that in.
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MR, BESHORE: | concur. And fromour perspective, it's
inportant if it is possible, and | think it is possible, it is
inportant to have firmdates for the briefing to be done. And
al so fromour perspective, it is inmportant that they not be any
further delayed than we have proposed, because it is, as | said
yesterday, it is extremely inportant for ny client's
perspective that we nove this as deliberately, but as quickly
as we can.

MR ENGISH And | don't disagree with my coll eague.
just want to note that obviously we are | eaving sonme room here
i f something happens. W have really appreciated Myra, and but
| know she may have sone other commtnments with things, so it
Is always conceivabl e that something down the road will go
wong, and if we don't have the transcript say by March 15th we
m ght have an issue, but that's why we're not creating an
automati c extension.

JUDGE CLIFTON: If you don't have the transcripts by what
day?

MR, ENG.ISH | was just saying if we don't have them --

JUDGE CLIFTON: By what date? |If you don't have them by
what date?

MR ENGLISH. If you don't have the transcripts certified
by March 1st. | was just giving an exanple. But ny point is,
we have agreed with M. Beshore not to create this automatic

mechanismif the transcript is not certified by March 1st, that
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that noves the briefing dates, that that would then give us a
chance to have a conversation and deci de what to do, but

W t hout an automatic extension. And then nmy caveat was that,
and again, there's no automatic extension, but I want to at

| east put on the record the possibility, obviously we don't
know, but there could be another USDA rul e making sonetine in
the spring. And if there were, and if it went |onger than a
week, that could inpact reply briefs. Again, I"'monly raising
it now as a potential thing that we m ght have a conversation
about, but | agree with M. Beshore that we have hard dates
that don't nove automatically.

So if | can summari ze:

Based on a January 1st expected "no later" date for
transcripts to be avail able, that Proponents of Proposal 1 and
Proposal Number 2 would submt their proposed corrections to
the record no |ater than, | believe Friday, January 15th.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Say that word again, your voice dropped.

MR. ENGLI SH:  Friday, January 15th. That whether it's two
weeks or three weeks, and | |leave that to others in the roomto
speak to, that there be a deadline of either January 29th or
February 6th, for any other transcript corrections to cone in.
And that we anticipate that that woul d nean that the transcript
be certified no later than March 1st. It could certainly be
certified prior to that date, that we are going to file

original briefs on or before Thursday, March 31st, and reply
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briefs on or before Mnday, May 16th, with the understanding
that those dates are fixed, but that if sonething happens with
the transcript and/ or extraordinary scheduling circunstances,
that parties wll agree, if they have a conversation, and if
necessary come back. But those would be fixed dates.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Beshore?

MR, BESHORE: Well, | agree as stated. And the nmoving of
t hose dates woul d be, noving of any of these dates, of course,
is always subject to notion, but, you know, we woul d, you know,
earnestly expect that the briefing dates woul d not have to be
nmoved.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Wio else would like to be heard on this
topic? Al right. 1 likeit. This is what | propose. |
propose that the counsel for, representing Proposals Nunber 1
and 2 file with the Hearing Cerk their proposed transcript
corrections no |ater than January 15, 2016, assum ng that they
have available all of the transcripts and exhibits on the AMS
Dairy website by at |east the |ast day of 2015.

| propose that anyone el se who wi shes to be heard on
the issue of transcript corrections, file no later than
February 5, 2016, with the Hearing Cerk, any such additiona
information for ny consideration. Be as sparing in your
| anguage as possible. For exanple, if you can accept all
that's been done and filed, you may say that, and then go on

fromthere. | wll certify the transcript. | will file with
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the Hearing Clerk my certification of the transcript, and |
wll send by e-mail that docunent to anyone who has filed a
Noti ce of Appearance in the Hearing Cerk's file, and given ne
an e-mai|l address in that Notice of Appearance, so | wll file
and e-mail my certification of the transcript no later than
March 1, 2016. And | note that that will be kind of a fun time
for me to do that, because just a few days earlier I will have
conpleted 15 years with the United States Departnent of
Agriculture on February 26th, 2016.

Al'l right. Then the opening briefs will be filed with
the Hearing Cerk no later than March 31, 2016, and if there is
to be any O ficial Notice requested, it nust be contained in an
opening brief. |If there's to be anything that woul d change
your proposal, such as we just had nention of today something
that may be fine-tuned or tweaked or changed, it must be in the
opening brief so that people can respond to it.

Those opening briefs are essential. Those are due no
| ater than March 31, 2016, by 4:30 p.m Eastern in the Hearing
Cerk's office.

If any of the Proponents are going to brief, they nust
begin with an opening brief. They will not be permtted to
chime in at the reply date.

Reply briefs are welcone so long as filed no later than
May 16, 2016, nust be filed on or before May 16, 2016, with the

Hearing Clerk. Reply briefs are welcone from anyone, even if
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you did not file an opening brief, unless you were part of a
Proposal, then you nmust have filed an opening brief in order to
be permtted to file a reply.

This schedul e avoi ds any deadlines on Dr. Martin Luther
King, Junior's birthday, which is January 18, so you have
chosen good dat es.

Any time a schedule is set, if there is an inability to
conply with it and a request is nade for relief, it is your
obligation, if you are |eading that request, to determ ne from
the ot hers who m ght have objection, whether they object. So
you woul d at |east have to canvass those who are part of a
Proposal team

What el se needs to be added? As we said when we first
started today, when you file with the Hearing Cerk, four
printed copies of filings are necessary. The Hearing O erk
makes one of those the original and may distribute the others.
At least, one will be sent to Laurel May. |f you provide the
Hearing Clerk with your e-mail address, the Hearing Cerk, in
an entry of appearance, the Hearing Cerk will also forward it
to you, an e-mail copy.

For everyone's -- as a courtesy to everyone, if you
could be mndful that if you wll send an electronic version as
a courtesy, if you, as a courtesy, will forward to one another
by e-mai|l what you have filed, it will just facilitate the

replies, which wll be very hel pful.
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Who el se has ideas or thoughts on that? M. English?
MR. ENGISH. Chip English. And this is nore going
forward. And | realize it's not in control of anybody in this
room but | do want to say it, because it's a pet peeve of mne
and | don't think I'malone, you can electronically file
pl eadi ngs with al nost every Federal Court in this country. A
rule that prevents electronic filing wwth the Hearing Cerk in
Novenber of 2015, is absurd.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Yeah. That's a good point. You know,

anot her problemin that regard is, if you have | ooked at the
regul ation that governs this proceeding, the way it is worded,
it isrequired that the Hearing Cerk make the changes that are
nmentioned in ny transcript certification on hard copy of the
transcript. | don't like it for two reasons. One is, | don't
think it's necessarily accurate; and nunber 2 is, if thereis a
court proceeding, the court wants el ectroni c subm ssions and
probably would prefer to have the el ectronic copies of the
transcripts, the electronic copies of the proposed corrections,
the el ectronic copy of ny certificate, and they won't be
| ooki ng at those manual | y-conpl eted changes. So it's nmake-work
that is not helpful. So there are sone antiquated provisions
that need to be updated, | agree.

| know that the Secretary of Agriculture is always
m ndf ul when asked for some proposed changes in regul ations of

what else in the universe of things agricultural is involved
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in publication in the Federal Register, and that often limts
what wi |l be undertaken. Al right. Oher ideas? Copies?
Comments? None. Does anyone el se have anythi ng procedural
before we close for the day? | see nothing.

It's alnpbst 12 noon, it is the 40th day, we have 194
exhibits, this just seems the perfect tine to close. And
t hank each of you for the opportunity to participate in this
amazi ng undertaking. Yes, it's been costly, it's been costly

in time, energy, the health of the participants, you have all

wor ked way too hard. But what -- what a wonderful and enornous

undertaking. It truly is historic. And | congratul ate each of
you for your part init.
This concludes our record at 12 noon

(Wher eupon, the proceedi ngs were concl uded.)

---000- - -
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COURT REPORTERS CERTI FI CATE

STATE OF CALI FORNIA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF FRESNO )

I, MYRA A PISH hereby certify:

| ama duly qualified Certified Shorthand Reporter, in
the State of California, holder of Certificate Number CSR
11613, issued by the Court Reporters Board of California and
which is in full force and effect.

| amnot financially interested in this action and am
not a relative or enployee of any attorney of the parties, or
of any of the parties.

| amthe reporter that stenographically recorded the
testinony in the foregoing proceeding and the foregoing

transcript is a true record of the testinony given.

DATED: January 8, 2016
FRESNO, CALI FORNI A

,\,\,\%@5@,

MYRA A. PISH, CSR
Certificate No. 11613
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